Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Ivalue Infosolutions Limited (formerly known as Ivalue Infosolutions Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of iValue Infosolutions Limited (“the
Company”) (formerly known as iValue Infosolutions Private Limited), which comprise the Standalone Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2024 and the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information in which are included the return for the year ended on that
date audited by the branch auditor of the Company’s branch located at Singapore.

. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and total comprehensive income
(comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

4.

We draw attention to Note 2a to the standalone financial statements regarding the Company’s reassessment
and consequent revision in its accounting policy for recognition of revenue from software and allied support
services for customer contracts. The Company had previously assessed that it was acting as a principal for
software and allied support services and now revised its assessment and concluded that it is acting as an agent,
considering the principles of Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contract with customers” and the additional
guidance/clarifications issued by global standard setters/ regulators which are also relevant for interpretation
of Ind AS.

Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
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Other Information

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
€rTor.

7. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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9.

10.

11.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

12.

We did not audit the financial information of 2 Branches located outside India included in the standalone
financial statements of the Company, which constitute total assets of Rs. 670 lakhs and net assets of Rs. 430
lakhs as at March 31, 2024, total revenue of Rs. 282 lakhs, total comprehensive loss (comprising of loss and
other comprehensive income) of Rs. 41 lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 4 lakhs for the year then
ended. The unaudited financial information in respect of these branches have been provided to us by the
management, and our opinion on the standalone financial statements of the Company in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these Branches, is based solely on such unaudited financial
information furnished to us. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by
the Management, these financial information are not material to the Company.
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13. The financial statements of 1 Branch included in the standalone financial statements, which constitute total

assets of Rs. 9,035 lakhs and net assets of Rs. 2,085 lakhs as at March 31, 2024, total revenue of Rs. 2,717
lakhs, total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income) of Rs. 574 lakhs
and net cash outflows amounting to Rs. 1,035 lakhs for the year then ended have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in its country and have been audited by other auditor under
generally accepted auditing standards applicable in its country. The Company’s management has converted
the financial statements of the branch, located outside India from the accounting principles generally accepted
in its country to the accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion
adjustments made by the Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs
of such branch located outside India including other information is based on the report of other auditor and
the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Company and audited by us.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports
of the other auditor and the financial statements certified by the management.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

14. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in paragraph 15 (i)(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

(c) The reports on the accounts of the branch office of the Company audited under Section 143(8) of the Act
by branch auditor have been sent to us and have been properly dealt with by us in preparing this report.

(d) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account and with the returns
received from the branch not visited by us.

(e) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(g) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made
to our remarks in paragraph 15(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) above and paragraph
15(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Rules.

(h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A%,
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(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 34 to the standalone financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
Note 47 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 47 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
that has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except
that the audit trail is not maintained in case of modification by certain users with specific access and
the audit trail is not maintained for direct database changes. During the course of performing our
procedures, other than the aforesaid instances of audit trail not maintained where the question of
our commenting does not arise, we did not notice any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with.

Further, the Company has also used an accounting software, which is operated by a third party
service provider for maintaining its books of account and in the absence of the independent service
auditor’s report, we are unable to comment on whether the audit trail feature of the aforesaid
software was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software or whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with.
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16. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public companies. As the
Company was a private limited company during the year ended March 31, 2024, reporting under Section
197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

g

Arunkumar Ramdas

Partner
Membership Number:112433

UDIN: 24112433BKFWEI3104
Mumbai
Date: August 30, 2024
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of of Ivalue
Infosolutions Limited (“the Company”) (formerly known as Ivalue Infosolutions Private Limited) as of
March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. =
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5.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

e

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

Ve

Arunkumar Ramdas

Partner
Membership Number:112433

UDIN : 24112433BKFWEI3104
Mumbai
Date: August 30, 2024
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books
of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we report that:

i.

ii.

(a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note 51
to the standalone financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets or both during the year. Consequently, the question of our commenting on
whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount
of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on
or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of
our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in the financial
statements does not arise.

(a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification
by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,
in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed quarterly
returns or statements with such banks, which are in agreement with the unaudited books of
accounts (Also refer Note 53 to the financial statements).
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iii. (a)

(b)

()

d
(e)

The Company has made investment in one mutual fund, granted unsecured loans to one company
and stood guarantee to one company. The Company has not granted advances in nature of loans
or provided security to any parties during the year. The aggregate amount during the year, and
balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such loans and guarantee to
subsidiaries are as per the table given below:

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars Aggregate amount granted/ | Balance outstanding as at
provided during the year Balance sheet date
Loan to a subsidiary 225 338
Guarantee on behalf of a 876 1,751

subsidiary

(Also refer Note 38 to the standalone financial statements)

In respect of the aforesaid investments, guarantees and loans, the terms and conditions under
which such loans were granted, investments were made and guarantees provided are not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

In respect of the loan, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated, and the party is repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and is also regular in
payment of interest as applicable.

In respect of the loan, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.
Following loans were granted to same parties, which has fallen due during the year and were

renewed/extended. Further, in respect of following loans, fresh loans were granted to settle the
overdue loans.

Name of the Aggregate Aggregate overdue amount Percentage of the
parties amount of loans settled by renewal or aggregate to the total
granted during extension or by fresh loans | loans granted during
the year. (Rs. In granted to same parties. the year.
lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
Swaroop M VN - 600 NA*
(employee)
225 475 211%
ASPL Info Services
Private Limited
(Subsidiary)

*Percentage cannot be calculated since no loan was granted to the party during the year.
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(f) The loans granted during the year, including to a related party had stipulated the scheduled

iv.

vii.

(a)

(b)

Viil.

repayment of principal and payment of interest and the same were not repayable on demand.

In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans and investments made and guarantees provided by
it.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred
in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products and services of the Company.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in
respect of professional tax, income tax and duty of customs, though there has been a slight delay
in a few cases, and is regular in deposmng undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund,

employees’ state insurance, sales tax, service tax, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, goods and
services tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

The particulars of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2024 which have
not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of dues | Amount | Period to | Forum where the dispute is
statute (Rs.  In | which the | pending
lakhs) amount
relates (FY)
The Customs | Custom Duty 23.16 2019-2020 Commissioner of Customs
Act, 1962
The Customs | Custom Duty | 1.10 2019-2020 Superintendent of Special
Act, 1962 Intelligence and
Investigation Branch
The Customs | Custom Duty | 121.00 2020-2021 Assistant Commissioner
Act, 1962
The Customs | Custom Duty | 114.20 2023-2024 Assistant Commissioner
Act, 1962

There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 14 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Ivalue Infosolutions
Limited (formerly known as Ivalue Infosolutions Private Limited) on the standalone financial statements as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2024
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ix. (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest to any lender during the year.

(b) On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful
Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the no
funds raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by the company.

(¢} On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries.

X.(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. (@) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the
year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12)
of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and as represented to us by the
management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xii.  As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report
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Limited (formerly known as Ivalue Infosolutions Private Limited) on the standalone financial statements as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2024
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xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of
Section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” specified
under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee
under Section 177 of the Act and accordingly, to this extent, the reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiv. (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

xv. In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section
192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not
have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether
the information provided by the management is accurate and complete. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii. The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately preceding
financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.
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Xix.

On the basis of financial ratios (Also refer Note 57 to the standalone financial statements), ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

As at Balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under Section
135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in

this report.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026 E/E-300009
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Arunkumar Ramdas

Partner
Membership Number:112433

UDIN : 24112433BKFWEI3104
Mumbai
Date: August 30, 2024



IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED
({Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

Particulars

ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a)  Property, Plant and Equipment
(b)  Right-of-use assets
{c)  Intangible assets
{d)  Financial Assets
{i) Investments in subsidiaries
(i) Loans
{iii) Other financial assets
{e) Income tax assets (net)
{f)  Deferred tax assets (net)
{g) Other non-current assets

Inventories

Financial Assets
(i}  Investments
(i)  Trade receivables
{m) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv)  Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
{v) Loans
{(vi) Other financial assets

{c) Other current assets
Current assets

AND LIABILITIES

{a)  Equity Share capital
(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature
{c) Other Equity

Equity

LIABILITIES
(i) Non-current llahilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities
Provisions

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings
(i} Lease Liabilities
{iii)  Trade payables

{a} Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
(b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than (i) (a) above

{iv)  Other financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities {net)
Contract liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions

Current liabilities

Equity and Liabilities

balance sheet should be read in conj ion with the

iIVALLU=

{Rs In Lakhs!
Asat As at

Note No. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
2 613
4 3,006 2,956
b 4 63
5a 625 625
&a 938 602
7a 327 296
13 6731 2,003
8,31 477 365
5 125 21
13,252 7748
10 2,692 8,99
b 1,115
11 65,806 68,919
12a 12,640 5930
12b 670 1,943
ob 250
7 522 473
ob 2,965 10,968
85,295 98,594
4R Ka7 106.338
14 (i) a1 421
14 i) 125 125
15 29 653
30,199
a 2567 2,624
172 1
2,875
18 3,584 4,233
4 606 303
1 49,421 64 386
20 3 194
16 125 253
21 171 48
2 3,939 3632
178 13
73,264
76,139
106 338

ying notes "0" denotes that the amaunts are below rounding off convention in the Standalone Financial Statement

is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co. Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

Ramdas
Partner
Membership Number: 112433
Place: Mumbai
Date: August 30, 2024

of IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED
(Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Managing Director
DIN: 02226978

Place: Bengaluru

Date: August 30, 2024

SwaroopM VN
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 2024

Sharma
Director
DIN: 03091392
Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 30, 2024

Lakshmammanni
Company Secretary
Membership No: AS51625

Place: Bengaluru



The above Sta

INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED

known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

Revenue from Operations
Other Income

Income

of Stock-in-trade
in inventories of Stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense
Finance Costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Expenses
before tax (I-11)
Tax Expense / (Benefit)
Current tax
(2) Tax adjustments for earlier years {Net)
{3) Deferred tax
Tax Expense

for the year (IN-1V)
Comprehensive Income

(i} ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
of post employment benefit obligations

{ii) Income tax relating to these itemns

(i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

{ii) iIncome tax relating to these items

Other Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income for the year {V+VI) {Comprising Profit (Loss) and

Comprehensive Income for the vear)

Earnings per equity share:
Basic EPS (in Rs.)
Diluted EPS (in Rs.)

the Standalon Statement.

Note For the year ended

No. 31 March 2024
23 74,641
24 1,365
76.006
25 48,740
26 6,304
27 4,517
28 1,224
29 687
30 5,000
66,472
9,534
31 2,534
(94)
31 (112)
2,328
7,206
33 0)
0
{0)
7,206

39

13
13

This is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co. Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ £-300009

‘vl'

w

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED
(Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Arunkumar Ramdas
Partner

Membership Number: 112433

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 30, 2024

Sunilkumar Pillai
Managing Director
DIN: 02226978

Place: Bengaluru

Date: August 30, 2024

ST A

Swaroop MV N
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 30, 2024

For the year ended

31 March 2023

Krishnaraj Sharma
Director

DIN: 03091392

Place: Bengaluru

Date: August 30, 2024

Lakshmammanni
Company Secretary
Membership No: A51625
Place: Bengaluru

Date: August 30, 2024

77,855
839

78,694

69,244
(8,308)
3,396
768
410
5,129

70,639
8,055
2,131

66
(89)
2,108

5,947

{0)

()

5,947

11
11

Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. "0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention in



IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED
{Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

IVALLUI=

(Rs. In Lakhs)

PARTICULARS Notes For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1.CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax 9,534 8,055
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and Amortisation expenses 29 687 410
Provision for Employee stock appreciation rights 27 212 204
Interest Income 24 (328) (333)
Net Gain on Investments carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 24 (19) (123)
Unwinding of interest on security deposit 24 (12) (7)
Gain on Termination of Leases 24 (14) (18)
Net Fair value loss / (gain) on derivatives not designated as hedges 24 &30 (39) 67
Unrealised {gain)/ loss on foreign currency translation (122) (196)
Finance costs 28 1,224 768
Bad Debts Written off 30 601 697
Allowance made / (reversed) for Expected credit loss on trade receivabies 30 1 {43)
Operating Profit before Warking Capital Changes 11,725 5,481
Adjustments for :
{Increase) / Decrease in Other financial assets 7a,7b & 24 {23) {411)
{Increase} / Decrease in Inventories 10 6,304 (8,308)
{Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables 2,428 (27,067)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current and Non current Assets 9a R 9b 7,998 {7,252)
Increase / {Decrease) in Trade Payables (14,722) 33,746
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 20 (191) 17
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 17a & 17b 48 37
Increase / {Decrease) in Contract Liabilities 21 124 (733)
Increase / {Decrease) in Current Liabilities 22 307 435
Cash Generated from operations 13,998 {55)
Less: Income tax payments (net of refunds received) (7,296) (1.262)
Net Cash flow fram/{used in) Operating Activities {A) 6,702 {1,317)
IL.CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment made in subsidiary - (550)
Payments for purchase of investments {200) (3,500)
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,334 7,011
Investments in fixed deposits with banks {20,292) (20,224)
Proceeds from withdrawal of fixed deposits with banks 21,577 20,134
Loan given 6a, 6b & 24 {86) (252)
Interest received 24 296 370
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (including capital advance) 3a&89a (380) {270)
Net Cash from/{used in) Investing Activities (B) 2,249 2,719
1I.CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
{Repayment) of / Proceeds from working capital 18 (649) 2,533
Repayment of Principal element of Lease Liabilities 4 (368) (207)
Capital Contribution - 21
Finance cost Paid 28 {1,224) {768)
Net Cash Flow from / (Used in) Financing Activities (C) (2,241) 1,579
Net {Decrease)/ Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 6,710 2,981
Cash and Cash Equival, at the beginning of the year 12a 5,930 2,949
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the year* 12a 12,640 5,930
Non cash transactions from investing and financing activities:
Acquisition of Right of use Assets 4 683 2,928
Disposal of Right of use Assets 4 {59) (61)
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IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED
{Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

*Components of Cash and cash equivalents

IVALU=

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Cash on Hand 1 2
In Current Accounts 2,341 4,428
Depesit with Banks with less than 3 months ariginal maturity 10,298 1,500
Total 12,640 5,930
Net debt reconciliation Liabilities arising from financing activities

Current borrowings Lease liabilities Total
Balance as at 1 April 2022 1,700 278 1,578
Additions 2,533 2,928 5,461
Repayment - (330) (330)
Interest expenses 200 123 323
Interest paid (200) . {200)
Termination of lease - (72) (72)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 4,233 2,927 7,160
Additions - 683 683
Repayment (649) (641) (1,290)
interest expenses 259 273 532
Interest paid {259) . {259)
Termination of lease - (69) {69)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 3,584 3,173 6,757

Standalone Financial Statement.
This is the Standalone Statement of Cash Fiows referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co. Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300009

P

Arunkumar Ramdas

Partner

Membership Number: 112433
Place: Mumbai

Date: August 30, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED
{Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Sunitkumar Pillai
Managing Director
DIN: 02226978

Place: Bengaluru

Date: August 30, 2024

e

Swaroop MV N
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 30, 2024

The above Statement of Cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. "0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention in the

Krishnaraj Sharma
Director

DiN: 03091392

Place: Bengaluru

Date: August 30, 2024

Lakshmammanni
Company Secretary
Membership No: A51625
Place: Bengaluru

Date: August 30, 2024




IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED i \, /\] L l =

{Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

{Rs. In Lakhs)
Reserves & Surplus
Particulars Equity Share Capital Instru.me:nts entirely Ca!:ital' Capital Securi'ties Retai_ned TOTAL
equity in nature* | Contribution Reserve premium earnings
Reserve

Balance as on 31 March 2022 221 125 - - ~ 8,538 15,144 24,228
Changes during the year on account of modification of CCPS and
Equity Shares** - - - 4,888 - (4,888) -
Profit for the Year - - - - 5,947 5,947
Other Comprehensive income - - - - (0) {0)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - . - - 5,947 5,947
Capital Contribution (Refer Note 36) s - 24 B - - 24
Balance as on 31 March 2023 221 125 24 4,888 8,538 16,203 30,199 |
Profit for the Year - - - - - 7,206 7,206
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - {0) {0)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - s - - . 7,206 7,206
Balance as on 31 March 2024 421 125 24 4,888 8,538 23,409 37,405 |

* Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares

**This represents recharacterisation of a portion of retained earnings as capital reserve pursuant to the waiver cum amendment agreement (effective from 01 April 2022) to the shareholders
agreement dated 19 April 2013, wherein certain investors (other than promoters) have waived off their buyback right on the investor securities. After the amendment, the investor securities
meet the definition of an equity instrument as per Ind AS 32 with effect from Ot April 2022.

The above Statement of Changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes, "0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention in the Standalone Financial

statement.

This is the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co. Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E-300003 {Farmerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)
v J
&

2 M X .
Arunkumar Ramdas /Sunilkumar Pillai Krishnaraj Sharma
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership Number: 112433 DIN: 02226978 DIN: 03091392
Place: Mumbai Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 30, 2024 Date: August 30, 2024 Date: August 30, 2024

B b
Swaroop MV N kshmammanni *
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No: A51625
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: August 30, 2024 Date: August 30, 2024



IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED " I e
(Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED) l\’/\ _L l et
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

Background
IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED (the “Company”) (Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED) is a public

limited company incorporated and domiciled in India. The registered office of the Company is located at No. 903/1/1, 19th
Main Road, 4th Sector, HSR Layout, Bangalore - 560 102. The Company provides Digital Assets protection and Data, Network &
Application (DNA) management with associated services through channel networks with various direct OEM partnerships. Key
verticals are BFSI vertical, eGovernance projects, ITeS vertical, Telecom, Manufacturing, Education and Hospitality vertical
(Categorized as i) Digital Asset Management and Protection and (ii) Software and Allied Support). The Company’s registered
office is in Bangalore and it has branches across India and outside India (Singapore, Kenya and Bangladesh).

Summary of accounting policies

Material Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of preparation

This Note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Standalone financial statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company. The financial statements comply in all
material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act)
[Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(i) Historical cost convention

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
-Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at fair value.
-Share based payments

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 (the ‘Rules’) which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2023.

The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements. The other
amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company in the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind
AS 12 as the Company'’s accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory treatment.

(iv) Current -Non current classification::

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria as set out in Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of the company's business
and the time between acquisition of assets for trading and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the company has
ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of classification of the assets and liabilities into current and

non-current.

(b) Foreign currency translation

{i) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the standalone financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The standalone financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.), which is the functional and presentation currency of the Company and its branches.

L'4362 €




IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED . =
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(Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. At the year-end, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the year - end
exchange rates. The exchange differences arising from settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the year-end
restatement are recognised in profit and loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on a net basis within ‘Other Income’/‘Other Expenses’. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

(c) (i) Revenue Recognition

The Company recognises revenue on completion of its performance obligations at the fixed transaction prices specified in the
underlying contracts or orders. There are no variable price elements arising from discounts or rebates. Where the contract or
order includes more than one performance obligation, the transaction price is allocated to each obligation based on their stand-
alone selling prices. These are separately listed as individual items within the contract or order. The primary areas of judgement
for revenue recognition as principal versus agent are set out below under our Critical estimates and judgements and described
further below for each revenue category. Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that significant
reversal will not occur. Transaction price excludes taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company does
not have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment
by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time

value of money.

Hardware
The Company'’s activities under this revenue stream comprise the sale of hardware items consists of servers, hardware security

modules and authentication keys. For hardware sales, the Company acts as principal, as it assumes primary responsibility for
fulfilling the promise to provide the goods and for their acceptability, is exposed to inventory risk during the delivery period and
has discretion in establishing the selling price. Revenue is recognised at the gross amount receivable from the customer for the
hardware provided and on a point-in-time basis when delivered to the customer.

Software and Allied Support

The Company’s performance obligation is to fulfil customers’ requirements through the procurement of appropriate software
products from relevant vendors. The Company invoices, and receives payment from, the customer itself. Whilst the transaction
price is set by the Company at the amount specified in its contract/order with the customer, the software licensing agreement
is between the vendor and the customer. The vendor is responsible for issuing the licences and activation keys, for the
software’s functionality, and for fulfilling the promise to provide the licences to the customer. Therefore, the Company acts as
an agent and recognizes revenue on a net basis. The Company recognises such software sales revenue on a point-in-time basis
once it has satisfied its performance obligations.

Revenue from professional/technical services and renewal of service packs is recorded on a net basis as the level of inventory
risk, to which the Company is exposed to, in these arrangements is negligible. The Company recognises such services revenue
on a point-in-time basis once it has satisfied its performance obligations.

(ii) Costs to fulfill contracts
The Company recognizes contract fulfilment cost as an asset if those costs specifically relate to a contract or to an anticipated
contract, the costs generate or enhance resources that will be used in satisfying performance obligations in future; and the

costs are expected to be recovered.
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IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED . I —
(Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED) l \,A s L ] —
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

{d) Income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to

temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the company operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in branches where the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
branches where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.
(e) Leases (As a Lessee)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

» variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

* amounts expected to be payable by the company under residual value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

 payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that option.
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Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which
is generally the case for leases of the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in

a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which

has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the company use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

» the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

* any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
e any initial direct costs

® restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payment associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profits or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

(f) Impairment of non financial assets:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(h) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective
of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less loss allowance. As a practical expedient, the Company has not adjusted the promised amount of
consideration for the effects of a significant financing component as the Company expects, at contract inception, that the
period between when the Company transfers the promised good or service to a customer and when the customer pays for that
good or service will be one year or less. Pursuant to paragraph 63 of Ind AS 115 " Revenue from Contract with customer".
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(i) Inventories

Traded goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of traded goods comprises cost of purchases. Cost of
inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are
assigned to individual items of inventory on weighted average basis. Costs are determined after deducting rebates and
discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale

(j) Investments (Other than Investments in Subsidiaries) and other financial assets

(i) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss)

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the

cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are'not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at FVOCI,

The company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.
{ii) Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sale the financial asset.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

{iii) (a) Debt instruments
Subseguent measurement of debt instruments depends an the company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the company classifies its debt

instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in Other
Income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in Other Income/(Other Expenses). Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit and loss.

* Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOC| are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other Income/{other expenses) in the period in which it arises. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income.
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(iii) (b) Equity instruments

The company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the company's management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in Other Income/(Other Expenses)
in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost
and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in

credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

(v) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

e the company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

e retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the
cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the company has transferred an asset, the company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the company has not
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.
Where the company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the
company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement

in the financial asset.

(vi) Interest income on bank deposits and unwinding of interest on security deposits paid

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
financial instrument, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating EIR the Company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider

expected credit losses.

(k) Derivative Instruments

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as speculative investments. Derivatives do not meet the
hedge accounting criteria and hence they are classified as ‘held for trading’ for accounting purposes and are accounted for at
FVPL. They are presented as current assets or liabilities to the extent they are expected to be settled within 12 months after the
end of the reporting period. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.
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(1) Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold tand is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the assets, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other income/(other expenses). Estimated useful life of assets
used for depreciation is as follows:

Nature of asset

Computers - 3 years

Office equipment- 5 years
Furniture and fixtures -10 years
Vehicles- 5 years

Demo equipment's - 4 years

The estimated useful lives of vehicles is lower than the useful life prescribed under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, in
order to reflect the actual usage of the assets.

(m) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting year. They are recognised initially at their transaction value which represents their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(n) Vendor programs

Funds received from vendors for product rebates and marketing/promotion programs are recorded as adjustments to product
costs, according to the nature of the program. The Company accrues rebates or other vendor incentives as earned based on
purchase of qualifying products or as services are provided in accordance with the terms of the related program.
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{o) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another
party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss

as other gains/(losses).

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all
or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan
arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the
reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the
approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

{p) Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

(q) Employee benefits

(1) Short term obligation:
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after

the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(1) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The Company has liabilities for earned leave that are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service. These obligations are therefore measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using
the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting
period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to
occur.
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{111) Post-employment obligations: The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

(i) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity:

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit
method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms
of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in
the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement
of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

(ii} Defined contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The company
has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined
contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

(iii) Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via share-appreciation rights. Liabilities for the company's share
appreciation rights are recognised as employee benefit expense over the relevant service period. The liabilities are remeasured
to fair value at each reporting date and are presented as employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(iv) Bonus plans
The Company recognise a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognise a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(v) Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to owners of the company

e by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

s the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive patential equity shares

e the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

(r) Investments in Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for impairment, if any. Investments in subsidiaries are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of investments exceeds its recoverable amount.
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(s) Events after Reporting Date
Where events occurring after balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of reporting period, the
impact of such events is adjusted in financial statements. Otherwise, events after balance sheet date of material size or nature

are only disclosed.

(t) Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement

of Schedule lil, unless otherwise stated.
Other Accounting Policies

(u) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance of the operating segments. The board of
directors of the company assess the financial performance and position of the company and make strategic decisions and
therefore are identified as chief operating decision makers. Refer note 40 for segment information.

(v) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the

counterparty.

(w) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets (Computer Software) has a finite useful life and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Computer Software
Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors is capitalised. Subsequent costs associated with
maintaining such software are recognised as expense as incurred. Cost of software includes license fees and cost of

implementation/system integration services, where applicable.

Amortisation Method and Period
Computer software are amortised on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line method over their estimated useful life of 5 years,
from the date they are available for use. Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each

financial year end.

(x) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

{y) Other income -Custom Duty Credit Scrip
The discount on Custom Duty Credit Scrip is recognised on purchase of such Scrip.

(z) Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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(Rs. In Lakhs}
Change in Accounting Policy - Revenue Recognition
The IFRS (Interpretations Committee) {IFRIC) issued an agenda decision in May 2022 on the recognition of the revenue from the resale of software licenses under IFRS 15 - Revenue from
contracts with customers. It was clarified by the IFRIC that pre-sale advise provided to the customers takes place prior to a contract with a customer for the sale of software license and
therefore it is not considered as part of the assessment of whether the intermediary is acting as principal in the arrangement between the intermediary and the vendor to deliver
software license to the end customer. ESMA (European Securities and Markets Authority) published an enforcement decision in October 2023 on a similar matter re-emphasising the
principles laid out by IFRIC.
Considering the above clarifications, many IFRS reporters in the software reseller industry revisited their accounting practice of recognising revenue from sale of licenses on a gross basis
and adopted net basis of accounting.

The Company previously accounted for revenue in relation to software and allied support on a principal basis. The Company has reassessed its accounting policy on revenue recognition
for software and allied support under Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contract with customers" considering the additional guidance/clarifications issued by global standard setter/regulators
which is also relevant for interpretation of Ind AS notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015].The aforesaid
clarifications provided further guidance on the "control" criteria which is used by the Company to determine whether it acts as a principal or as an agent in relation to sale of software
licenses. Considering that (i) pre-sale advice cannot be considered as part of the principal versus agent assessment, {ii) the software developers/vendors remain the primary obligors to
fulfil the performance obligation related to the sales of software licenses and allied support and (iii) the Company has only insignificant inventory risk, the Company concluded that it acts
as an agent in respect of software and allied support and decided to change its accounting treatment from gross basis to net basis for such arrangements. As prescribed in Ind AS 8-
"Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors", the Company applied this accounting treatment change retrospectively, so that the prior year and current year are
presented consistently.

The i of this change in accounting treatment on th prior year financial statement are as follows:
Before Change in Accounting Treatment |Impact of change in Accounting Treatment| After Change in Accounting Treatment
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended | Forthe year ended | Forthe yearanded | For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Revenue from operations (A}
Hardware 60,760 66,280 - - 60,760 66,280
Software and Allied Support 143,463 107,463 (129,582) {95,888) 13,881 11,575
Total 204,223 173,743 (129,582} {95,888) 74,641 77,855
Purchases of Stock-in-trade (B)
Hardware 48,740 69,244 - - 48,740 69,244
Software and Allied Support 124,625 100,651 (124,625) {100,651) - -
Total 173,365 169,895 {124,625} {100,651} 48,740 69,244
Changes in inventory of Stock-in-Trade (C) 11,261 (13,071) (4,957) 4,763 6,304 (8,308}
Gross Margin (D) = (A} - (B) - (C) 19,597 16,919 . - 19,597 16,919
Other current assets
Stock-in-trade 4,122 15,383 (1,430) (6,387) 2,692 8,996
Cost to fulfill contracts - - 1,430 6,387 1,430 6,387

This change in accounting Treatment has no impact on the Company's net income, earnings per share or on the cash flows.
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Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise
judgement in applying the company's accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(i) Revenue recognition — Principal versus agent:

Under Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, when recognising revenue, the Company is required to assess whether its role in satisfying its various performance
obligations is to provide the goods or services itself {in which case it is considered to be acting as principal) or arrange for a third party to provide the goods or services (in which case it is
considered to be acting as agent). Where it is considered to be acting as principal, the Company recognises revenue at the gross amount of consideration to which it expects to be
entitled. Where it is considered to be acting as agent, the Company recognises revenue at the amount of the margin which it expects to be entitled.

To determine the nature of its obligation, the standard primarily requires that an entity shall:

(a) Identify the specified goods or services to be provided to the customer

(b) Assess whether it controls each specified good or service before that good or service is transferred to the customer by considering if it:
a.is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the specified good or service

b.has inventory risk before the specified good or service has been transferred to a customer

c. has discretion in establishing the price for the specified good or service.

Judgement is therefore required as to whether the Company is a principal or agent against each specified good or service, noting that a balanced weighting of the above indicators may
be required when making the assessment. The specific judgements made for each revenue category are discussed in the accounting policy for revenue recognition.

(1) Impairment of trade receivables:
Impairment of trade receivables is primarily estimated based on prior experience with and the past due status of receivables, based on factors that include ability to pay and payment

history. The assumptions and estimates applied for determining the provision for impairment are reviewed periodically.

(i) Estimation of Provision for y

The Company’s inventory levels are based on the projections of future demand and market conditions. Any sudden decline in demand and/or rapid product improvements and
technological changes could cause us to have excess and/or obsolete inventory. On an ongoing basis, the Company reviews for estimated excess or obsolete inventory and makes
appropriate provision to inventory to bring to its estimated net realizable value based upon forecasts of future demand and market conditions.

{ili) Share-based payments
The fair valuation of employee share appreciation rights requires use of certain assumptions and estimates as given in Note 42.

"0" denotes that the amounts are below rounding off convention in the Standalone Financial Information.
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5a

Sh

6a

6b

7a

7b

IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED
{Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)
Notes forming part of the dalone financial

Particulars

I in equity i {fully paid-up and Unquoted) at cost
1,00,000 {31 March 2023 : 1,00,000) equity shares of Asia ivalue Pte Ltd of face value of USD 1 00
5,68,025 {31 March 2023 : 6,68,025) equity shares of ASPL Info Services Private Limited of face value of Rs 10.00

Total

Particulars

Investments in Mutual funds at FVTPL {Unquoted)
Nil Units {31 March, 2023 - 27,612 units) in LIC MF Liquid Fund - Regular Plan- Growth
Total

Particulars

[Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Loans to Employees

Loans to Related party (Refer Note 38)

Total

Particulars

{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Loans to Related party {Refer Note 38}
Total

Particulars

{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

- Rent Deposits

- Electricity Deposits

- Deposits with banks with maturity more than 12 months from balance sheet date™
Total

IVALUZ

{Rs In Lakhs)

As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

75 75
550 550
625 625
Asat As at

31 Marrh 2N24 31 Marrh 2023
1.115
11185
As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

600 602
Qan AN
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
250

250

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 march 2023

216 173

1 1
110 122
77 ELTS

*Deposits with banks includes Rs 50 Lakhs (31 March 2023 : Rs 98 Lakhs) deposited with banks as Margin Money Deposit for Buyers Credit, Bill discounting, Letter of Credit,

Bank Guarantees issued as Collateral Security

and Considered good unless otherwise stated}
Assets (Foreign exchange forward contracts)
receivables
accrued on depasits with banks

Other

Note: Vendar receivables pertains to marketing expenses reimbursable from Original Equipment Manufacturers
Deferred tax assets (Net)

Particulars

Deferred tax assets in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment depreciation and Intangible assets amortisation
Allowance for Expected credit loss on Trade receivables

Retirement benefits and compensated absences

Lease liabilities

Provision for Employee stock appreciation rights

Security deposit

Deferred tax liability in relation to:
Right of use assets

Total
Note: Refer note 31c movement of deferred tax

"y
<

As at Asat
39
418 448
14 17
37 2
Asat As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

70 51
174 174
52 4¢
795 737
121 68
26 3C
761 744
ari AR5
3 62

Chartered Accountants
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9b

10

11

1.1

1.2

IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED
{Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

Particulars

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Balance with Government Autharities (Payments made under protest)
Capital Advances

Total

Particulars

{Unsecured and Considered good unless otherwise stated)

Pre-Paid Expenses

Balances with Government Authorities
Custom Duty Credit Scrip

Costs to fulfill contracts

Advanre tn cunnliers far snad< and <ervicac
Total

Particulars

Stock-in-trade*

Total

*Consists of servers, hardware security modules and authentication keys

a) Stock-in-trade includes goods In transit Rs 65 Lakhs {31 March 2023 : Rs 20 Lakhs)

IVALLUIZ

{Rs In Lakhs)
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
125 120
101
175 221
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1,096 3,472
28 332
1,430 6,387
327 689
2 965 10.968
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
2,692 8,996
2.692 R Q9s

b) Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value amounted to Rs 201 Lakhs in the current year whereas there was reversal of write-downs of inventories to net realisable
value amounting to Rs 126 Lakhs in the previous year These were recognised and included in ‘Changes in inventories of Stock-in-trade’ in Statement of Profitand Loss.

Particulars

Trade receivables from contracts with customers ~ billed
Loss Allowance
Total

Trade receivables considered good — secured

Trade receivables considered good — unsecured

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables — credit impaired

Total

Loss Allowance

Total

No trade or other receivable are due from

parties as disclosed in Note 38

Particulars

Unbitled

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good

{ii) Undi d Trade receivables - ¢ ed doubtful
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good

ivl Disouted Trade Receivables - considered doubtful

Particulars

Unbilled

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - cansidered good

[iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good
'ivl Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful

Not Due

48,905

Not Due

51,921

Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

66,499 69,611
693 692

A5 ]0A AR.919

66,499 69,611

66,499 69,611
693

A& ROG &R a1q

person

Outstandine for followine nerinds from the due date

Lessthan 6
manthe
12,982

Less than 6

14,525

6 months 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
upar
2,365 1,331 813 50
53
the due

6months- 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
2,010 975 61 66
53

B
36
" 2

5 Chartered Accountants
&
30402
* Mumba

Total

66,446

53

69,558

53



IVALUZ
IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED l AL
{Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes forming part of the financial (Rs In Lakhs)
12a
Particulars As at As at
31March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash on Hand 1 2
Balances with banks
- In Current Accounts 2,341 4,428
- Deposit with Banks with less than 3 months original maturitv 10298 1500
Total 19 Aan g an
12b
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deposits with banks with maturity of 12 months or less from balance sheet date* 670 1,943
Total RIN 1aa2

*Deposits with banks includes Rs 449 Lakhs (31 March 2023 : Rs 340 Lakhs) deposited with banks as Margin Money Deposit for Buyers Credit, Bill discounting, Letter of Credit,
Bank Guarantees issued as Collateral Security

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advance income tax 6,731 2,003
{Net of provision for income tax of Rs 6,626 Lakhs, 31 March 2023 of Rs 4,311 Lakhs)
Total
14
Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Authorised share capital

5,000,000 (31 March 2023: 5,000,000} Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 500 Lon

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

4,210,715 (31 March 2023: 4,210,715) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid- up 421 421
421 421

Total
14 (i) Instruments entirely equity in nature
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares

Authorised share capital
2,000,000 {31 March 2023: 2,000,000) Compulsorilv Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10 each 200 200

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

1,250,025 {31 March 2023: 1,250,025) Campulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10 each fully paid- up 125 125

Total 7% 128
(a} n

Particulars

Eguity shares

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,210,715 421 4,211,067 421

Increase / {Decrease) during the year* {352) 0

Balance at the end of the vear 4210715 421 4210715 421

to scheme of arrangement, the shares of the Company held by iUnite Technologies Private Limited were trasferred to the shareholders of iUnite Technologies
Private Limited Refer Note 36 for details

(b)
Particulars
Numbher Numher
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,250,025 125 1,250,025 125
Increase / (Decrease) during the year
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,250,025 125 1,250,025 125
(c) Rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares:

1) The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held They entitle the holder to
participate in dividends, and to share in the proceeds of winding up of the company in propartion to the number of and amounts paid an the shares held

1) The Company has ane class of preferences shares i e Series A Compulsorily Convertible preference shares ("CCPS" ) of face value Rs 10 each

(a) The CCPS shall confer on the holder, the right to receive, in priority to the holders of equity shares, the dividend as when the Board declares a dividend

(b) The dividend on CCPS shall be cumulative

{c) The halder of CCPS is entitled to receive equity share in an agreed ratio at the earliest of first closing date (i e April 30, 2019) or at the end of 19 years

(d) CCPS when converted into equity shares, shall rank pari passu with the existing equity shares of the Company in all respects

(e) The Company has received an intimation from the CCPS holders that they have not exercised the option of conversion ta equity as at March 31, 2024

&
0 C-436,

« Chartered Accountants
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(d)

(e)

15

{a

17a

17b

IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED
(Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)
Notes forming part of the financial

Sunil Kumar Pillai
Krishna Raj Sharma
Hilda Sunil Pillai

Venkatesh R

Subodh Anchan

Rov Abraham Yohannan

Sundara { Mauritius) Limited

Promoter Name

No. of Shares % of total shares

11 Sunil Kumar Pillai 809 377
2) Krishna Raj Sharma 522144
3) Srinivasan Sriram 338 9n1
Total 1670422
Particulars

a. Securities Premium (Refer Note a below)
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Balance as at the end of the year

b. Retained earnings

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Changes during the year on account of modification of CCPS and Equity Shares*
Net Profit for the year

-Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of Tax

Balance as at the end of the year

c. Capital Contribution (Refer Note 36)
d. Capital Reserve

Total

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

No of Shares % of total shares

19% RNQ 377 19% 0%
12% 522 144 12% 0%

R%. 3R 9Mm A% n%
39% 1670422 39% 0%

As at
31 March 2024

8 53R

8,538

16,203

7,206

(o]

J34n9

24

4,888

36.859

IVALUZ

{Rs In Lakhs)

Nn nf chares % Nn nf charas %
643,133 15% 643,133 15%
809,377 19% 809,377 19%
522,144 12% 522,144 12%
399,768 9% 399,768 9%
338,901 8% 338,901 8%
310,821 7% 310,821 %
285,728 7% 285,728 %
268 124 6% 268 124 6%

As at 31 March 2023
Nn of charee % Nn nf charae %
1250025 100% 1250025 100%
% Change during the year

ended 31 March 2023

Asat
31 March 2023

853R

8538

15,144
(4,888)
5,947

(0
1203

24
4,888

29.653

*“This represents recharacterisation of a portion of retained earnings as capital reserve pursuant to the waiver cum amendment agreement (effective from 01 April 2022) to
the shareholders agreement dated 19 April 2013, wherein certain investors {other than promoters) have waived off their buyback right on the investor securities After the
amendment, the investor securities meet the definition of an equity instrument as per Ind AS 32 with effect from 01 April 2022

Nature and purpose of Security premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act

Particulars

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 33)

Provision for Emplovee stock appreciation rights (Refer Note 421
Total

Particulars

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity {(Refer Note 33)

Provision for compensated absences (Refer Note 33)

Provision for Emolovee stock annoreciation riehts (Refer Nate 421
Total

ny

wn

As at
31 March 2024

182
112
294

As at
31 March 2024

16
4
372
432

Chartered Accountants

As at
31 March 2023

141
110
251

As at
31 March 2023

14
39
162
215

C 4362

026E/E
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19

19.1

19

N

20

16

21

22

IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED

(Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)

financial

Notes forming part of the

Particulars

Secured Loans
Rupee loan from banks (al
Total

Asat
31 March 2024

3584
2 RRA

iVALUZ

{Rs In Lakhs)

As at
31 March 2023

4233
a1

{a)The Company has availed working capital loans repayable on demand from company’s bankers which is secured by first charge on a pari-passu basis on the whole of current
assets of the Company including inventories, trade receivables, outstanding monies, etc bath present and future including mavable fixed assets of the Company, bath present
and future The interest rate on the working capital loan ranges between 7 5% to 8 4 % per annum

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note 35)
[b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 49,421 64,386
Total 48.421 64,386
Trade schedule as at March 2024
Particulars
Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
(i) Undisputed-Micro enterprises and small enterprises
{ii) Undisputed-Others 2,874 37,010 7.704 1,538 284 11 49,421
{iii) Disputed dues - Micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Disputed dues - Others
Trade payable ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from the due date
Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
[i} Undisputed-Micro enterprises and small enterprises
i) Undisputed-Others 7.651 46.430 9.594 355 36 320 64,386
{iif) Disputed dues - Micro enterprises and small enterprises
{iv) Disputed dues - Others
Other financial liabilities {current)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Derivative liabilities {Foreign currency forward contracts) 67
Other payables 3 127
Total 3 194
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 213
Provision for taxation 125 253
Total 195 783
Contract liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advance from Customers 171 48
Total 171 48
liabilities for
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at beginning of the year 48 781
Amount received during the year against which revenue has
not been recognized m 42
Revenue recognized during the year 48 778
Balance at the end of the year 171 48
Other Current Liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31March2024 31 Marrh 20173
Statutory Dues™ 3,939 3,632
Total 3.939 3.632
* Statutory dues payable includes ESIC, TDS payable, paya TCS taxes etc
a, Co 13
N ) 43 4
"

& Chartered Accountants
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23
(i)

(ii)

24

25

IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED
(Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

Revenue from

Particulars

Revenue from Contracts with customers

Domestic Revenue
Hardware*
Software and Allied Support

Exports Revenue
Hardware*
Software and allied support

Total
*Consists of servers, hardware security modules and authentication keys.

For the year ended
31 March 2024

58,918
12.768
71,686

1,842
1,113
2,955

74,641

# Revenue from resale of Hardware and Software and allied support is recognised at a point in time.

Gross sales as in the table below amounts billed

Particulars

Gross sales billed to the Customers
Netting of Gross Sales and Gross Purchase in respect of Software and Allied
support services (Refer Accounting policy related to revenue recognition)

Revenue from operations

Other Income
Particulars

Interest Income from bank deposits

Net Gain on Investments carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss [Includes Net
Unrealised Fair Value Gains arisen during the year is Nil (Previous Year - Rs. 59
Lakhs})]

Unwinding of interest on security deposit

Gain on Termination of Leases

Interest on Income tax refunds

Net Fair value gain on derivatives not designated as hedges

Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation

Income from Custom Duty Credit Scrip

Interest Income from loan given to Related Party

Bad Debts Recovery

Income from Insurance Claims

Other Non-operating income

Total

Purchases of Stock-in-trade

Particulars

Hardware*
Total

*Consists of servers, hardware security modules and authentication keys.

the com

For the year ended
31 March 2024
204,223
(129,582)

74,641

For the year ended
31 March 2024
159
19

12
14
169
39
526
14
39
90
77
207
1,365

For the year ended
31 March 2024
48,740
48,740

N U=

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended

31 March 2023

62,216
10.623
72,839

4,064
952
5,016

77,855

to the customers in the relevant

For the year ended
31 March 2023
173,743
(95,888)

77,855

For the year ended
31 March 2023
198
123

18
135

141

22

188
839

For the year ended
31 March 2023
69,244
69,244

g o A
\J\)?\N 436
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27

28

29

30

IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED
{Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

Cha in of Stock-in-Trade

Particulars

Closing balance
Less: Openina balance
Net {Increase) / decrease

Benefits
Particulars

(a) Salaries and Wages

{b) Contributions to Provident fund (Refer Note 33)
{c) Gratuity expense (Refer Note 33)

(d) Staff welfare expenses

{e) Employee stock appreciation rights (Refer note 42)
Total

Finance Costs
Particulars

Interest on working capital loan

Interest charge on lease liabilities

Interest on Factoring of Trade Receivables
Interest on delayed payment of Statutory Dues
Total

and amortisation expenses

Particulars

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3a)
Depreciation of right of use assets (Refer Note 4)

Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 3b)

Total

Other Expenses

Particulars

Rent
Rates & Taxes
Travelling & Conveyance
Telephone & Internet Expenses
Bank Charges
Auditor's Remuneration
-for Statutory audit
-for Other Services
Loss allowance made / (reversed) for ECL on Trade receivables
Bad debts Written off
Commission
Net Fair value loss on derivatives not designated as hedges
Software Subscription Charges
Insurance
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note 37)
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

For the year ended
31 March 2024
2,692
8.99%6
6,304

For the year ended
31 March 2024

4060
116
44

85
212
4,517

For the year ended
31 March 2024
259
273
637
55
1,224

For the year ended
31 March 2024
112
553
22
687

For the year ended
31 March 2024

1,904

448

50

39

14

44

361

30

95

35

3

1

601
566
333
114
104
258
5,000

IVALL=

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended
31 March 2023
8,996
688
(8,308)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

2984

87

34

87

204

3,396

For the year ended
31 March 2023
200
123
425

20
768

For the year ended
31 March 2023
109
299
2
410

For the year ended
31 March 2023

1246

588

411

26

17

29

306

23

73

24

3
(43)
697
1,578
67
142
112
83
117
5.129
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IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED . \,Al L ’ oy
{Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED) I — —
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

Note 31 - Taxation

(3) Income tax expense (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current tax
Current tax on Profit for the year 2,534 2,131
Tax adjustments for earlier years {Net} (94) 66
Total current tax expenses 2,440 2,197
Deferred tax
Decrease /(Increase) in deferred tax assets (129) (756)
(Decrease) /Increase in deferred tax liabilities 17 667
Total deferred tax expenses/(benefit) {112) (89)
Income tax expense 2,328 2,108
Income tax expense attributable to :
Profit from operations 2,328 2,108
Profit from discontinued operations - =
Total 2,328 2,108
{b) Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by India tax rate
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Profit from operations before income tax expense 9,534 8,055
India tax rate 25.2% 25.2%
Tax at India tax rate 2,400 2,027
Tax adjustments for earlier years (Net) {94) 66
Penalty and interest 6 -
CSR Expenses permanently disallowed 26 21
Others (10) (6)

Income tax expense 2,328 2,108




IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED . \I/\I l ] —
(Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED) I —-— -—

Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

{C) Deferred tax assets / liabilities as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Opening Amount credited / Amount credited / Net recognised
balance  (charged)in Profitand (charged) in Other Deferred tax asset
Loss A/c Comprehensive Income and Liability

Deferred tax assets in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment depreciation and 51 19 - 70
Intangible assets amortisation

Allowance for Expected credit loss on Trade 174 0 - 174
receivables

Retirement benefits and compensated absences 49 3 0 52
Provision for Employee stock appreciation rights 68 53 - 121
Lease liabilities 737 58 - 795
Security deposit 30 (4) . 26

Deferred tax liability in relation to:

Right of use assets 744 17 - 761
Security deposit - - .
Total 365 112 0 477
{d) Deferred tax assets / liabilities as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Opening Amount credited / Amount credited / Net recognised
balance (charged) in Profitand  {charged) in Other Deferred tax asset
Loss Afc Comprehensive Income and Liability

Deferred tax assets in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment depreciation and 51 - - 51
Intangible assets amortisation

Allowance for Expected credit loss on Trade 185 (11) - 174
receivables

Retirement benefits and compensated absences 40 9 0 49
Provision for Employee stock appreciation rights 17 51 - 68
Lease liabilities 60 677 . 737
Security deposit - 30 . 30
Deferred tax liability in relation to:

Right of use assets 57 687 . 744
Security deposit 20 {20) -

Total 276 89 0 365
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IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED . I —
{Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED) | \’ A __l ] =

Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

Additional Information to the Financial Statements Rs in lakhs

34 a) Contingent liabilities

35

3

o

37

Particulars asat Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
Customs 383 137

-The Company has ongoing disputes with various Customs Authorities mainly pertaining
toincorrect classification of imported materials, for the purpose of computation of
custom duty.

-In respect of above, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of
cash outflows, if any, pending resolution of the respective proceedings. The Company
does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above.

b) Commitments:
i) Capital commitments {net of advance):
There are no Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting year or as at 31 March 2023.

ii) Other Commitments:
There are no other commitments at the end of the reporting year or as at 31 March 2023.

Disclosures required for Micro and Smalt Enterprises:

There are no delayed payments to Micra and small enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 during the year and hence disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together
with interest paid/payable to those supplier as required under the said Act have not been given.

IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED) {Transferee Company) and
iUnite Technologies Private Limited (Transferor Company) had filed an application under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation on 14th December 2020 before the National Company Law Tribunal,
Bengaluru Bench (“NCLT”). Company had received an order dated June 8, 2022 whereby NCLT had approved the above scheme
and hence the balances of the transferor company was included in the financial statements of the transferee company during the
year ended 31 March 2023 from the effective date as per the order.Considering that the acquisition of group of assets acquired
pursuant to the amalgamation did not constitute a business, the Company identified and recognised the individual identifiable
assets acquired (Rs 724 lakhs) and liabilities assumed (Rs 700 lakhs) as at the effective date and recorded excess of assets
acquired over liabilities assumed of Rs 24 lakhs as “Capital contribution” under “Other Equity”.

Corporate social responsibility expenditure

In terms of provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the company is required to spend 2% of its average net profit
for the immediately preceding three financial years on prescribed corporate social responsibility (CSR) Activities. The funds were
contributed to eligible trusts for carrying out activities as specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013. A CSR committee
has been formed by the company as per the Act.

For the year ended |For the year ended|
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year 104 75

{b) Amount spent during the year on:

- Construction / acquisition of any asset - -

- On purposes other than above

a) In cash 104 83

b) Yet to be paid - o
(c) Shortfall at the end of the year s '

(d) Total of previous years shortfall -

(e) Details of related party transactions =

{f) Accrual towards unspent obligations = =




IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED . f l —
{Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED) '\ A _l l =

Notes forming part of the Standalane financiel statements

Rs in lakhs
a8 Related party transactians
Datails of related parties:
| Description of relationship Name of related parties
{il Kev management personnel 1) Sunil Kumar Pillai- Managing Director
21 Krishna Raj Sharma- Director
31 Kabir Kishin Thakur- Director
1) Whally swned Subsidiary 1) Asia iValue Pte. Ltd
2] ivalue S L {Private) Limited
1) walue Infosolutions Sea Co., LTD
{iii} Subsidiary 1) ASPL Info Services Private Limited {From 16 February 2023)
2} ASPL Info Services (FZE) - Subsidiary
Sundars Mauritius Ltd
A, The foll ions aecurred with related parties:
|Particulars For the vear ended Far the vear ended

31March2024 | 31March2023

1. Sales and purchases of goods and services

a) Sales of stack in trade:
Asia iValue Pte Ltd 445 8
ASPL Info Services Private Limited - 2

b} Purchase of stock in trade:
Asia iValue Pte Ltd q 168|
ASPL Info Services Private Limited 107 b

~

Other transactions

a) Reimbursement of Expenses from:
Sundara Mauritius Ltd %! . 13|

b) Advertisement and Sales Promotion:
Asia iValue Pte Ltd 177]

¢) Professional and Consultancy Charges:
ASPL info Services Private Limited ! 29

d) Subscription Charges:
ASHY Info Services Private Limitéd 24

&) Short term Employee benefits*
Sunil Kumnar Pillai a3 81
Krishna Raj Sharma 78| 70,

f) Post-employee benefits*
Sunil Kumar Pillai 2 2
Krishna Raj Sharma 2 2

*As the liabilities for defined benefit plans are provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a whale, the amounts
pertaining to Key Management Persannel are not included

f) Investment made in Subsidlary Company
ASPL Info Services Private Limited - 550

g) Loan given:
ASPL Info Services Private Limited 225 250

h) Loan repayment:
ASPL Info Services Private Limited 137

i) Other Non-Operating Income:
ASPL Info Services Private Limitad 39 2

Sundira Mavritius Lrd . 6

]} Liabllity no longer payable:

Asia iValue Pte Ltd ¥ . 11
k) Bad Debts:
Asia iValue Pte Ltd . 22

I) Corporate Guarantee:
Asia iValue Pte Ltd B76 858




IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED
(Formerly known as IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)
Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements

iVALU=

32

3. Outstanding balances:

a) Trade Receivables:
Asia Value Pte Ltd

b} Trade Payahies:
Asia iValue Pte Ltd
ASPL Info Services Private Limited

d) Other receivables
Sundara Mauritius Ltd

&) Loans to Related Parties
ASPL Info Services Private Limited

f) Interest accrued on Loans ta Related Parties:
ASPL Info Services Private Limited

£ Prepaid Expenses:
ASPL Info Services Private Limited

h) Corporate Guarantee:
Asia iValue Pte Ltd

i} Salary and reimbursement related Payable to Key management personnel
Sunil Kumnar Pillai

Krishna Raj Sharma

[Equity shares and Preference shares held by Sundara { Mauritius) Limited (Refer Note 14{i), 14 {ii}}

Az in lakhs
993 354
318 249
72] i
[ 29
338 250
37| 2]
0|
1,751 858
3 3]
2 3|

! Keyman Insurance paid by Group which is reil Ltd as per g
™ iabulity na longer payable - Old outstandings payable to Vendars written back
®l Infrastructure Management Services provided bv ASPL Info Services Private Limited

by Sundara

Notes:

a) The transactions with related parties were at normal commercial terms, Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest free {other than loan given to

subsidiary) and settlement occurs in cash,

b) There were no loans due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them severally or jointly with any other persons or amounts due by firms or private
companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a member ather than loan given as stated in the above disclosure.
c) Walue S L (Private) Limited and Ivalue Infosolutions Sea Co, LTD had been Incorporated as wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. Howaver, there has been no

Infuslon of capital, and operations of the subsldjaries are yet to commence as of 31 March 2024,

d] For Investment made in the subsidiaries, Refer Note

ngs Pet Share
Particulars For the year ended 31 | Forthe year ended 31
March 2024 March 2023
Prafit attributable to the equity halders of the company used in calculating basic and diluted EPS (Rs In Lakhs) 7,206 5,947
Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos ) for calculating Basic earnings per share and Diluted earnings per 53,539,880 53,539,880
share
Basic EPS attributable to the equity holders of the Company (Rs.) 13 11
Diluted EPS attributable to the equity holders of the Company {Rs.) 13 11
Nominal value of shares (Rs. }(Refer note 61 and 62) H | 2
Ib] Catculativn of weighted average number of shares for the purpose of Basic eaming ber shares
Particulars Forthe year ended 31 | Forthe year ended 31
March 2024 March 2023
Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos.) as per Note 14{i] and 14(ii)*[a] 5,353,988 5,353,988
Addition due to Sub-division and Bonus issuance {Refer note 61 and 62){b] 48,185,392 48,185,892
Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos ) for calculating Basic earnings per share and Diluted earnings per 53,539,380 53,539,380
share* (c]= {a]+[b]

*Includes 1,250,025 compulsorily Convertible Preference thares canverted to 1,143,273 equity thares for the year endied 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
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41

42

43

Rs in lakhs

Disclosura of segment
a) The Company is primarily engaged in a single business of providing i) Hardware and {ii) Software and Services and is governed by similar set of returns. Cheif operating
decision maker identifies bath business as single operating segment for the purpose of making decision on allocation of resources and assessing its performance.

b} Entity wide disclosure:
1) The Company is domiciled in india The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the customers is shown below:

Far the year ended 31 March| For the year ended 31
2024 March 2023

71686 72.839

2,955 5,016

74641 77855

tax assets and deferred tax assets) located in India and rest of the world is shown

Far the year ended 31 March
2024

4,341

13

4.154

lii) Revenues of approximately Rs. 22,486 lakhs is derived 10% or more Individually during the year ended 31 March 2024 from two external custorers mainly from India
Revenues of approximately Rs. 22,953 lakhs is derived 10% or mare indlvidually from two external customers mainly from Indla during the year ended 31 March 2023

The Company Is a distributor of products of Original Equipment Manufacturer's (OEM| which are backed by warranty from the OEM'’s. Hence, the Company does not have
any obligation towards warranty on sale of such praducts.

Share based payment Share appreciation rights {SAR):

The Company has granted 2,55,300 SAR ta certain eligible employees till March 31, 2024. Of these 52,200 SAR have been granted in the current year. These are split Into
40% linked to retention condition and 0% linked to performance condition. Out of these 45,879 SAR |apsed, 1,34,613 SAR vested and 74,808 SAR are yet to be vested as
on March 31,2024, These SAR have a strike price of Rs 10 and Rs 700,

The retention linked SAR shall vest at end of one year from the Relevant Date of the Grant. The performance linked SAR shall vest equally over a period of five years

The vested SAR can be exercised by the ellgible employees up on the occurance of a Liquidity Event, as may be decided by the Compensation Committee, from time to time.
For the SAR's issued in the current year the date of grant of option is 03 October 2023 and the expiry of option is 31 March 2028 and for the SAR's issued in previous year
the date of grant of aption is D2 March 2023 and date of expiry of option is 31 March 2027 and for the SAR's issued in earlier years the date of grant of option Is 12 October
2021 and date of expiry of option is 31 March 2026,

The expenses towards SAR's is computed by determining the present value of the accrued benift to the employees using the black-scholes model of valuation. Total

arlsing from share-based payment has been ised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense, Refer Note 27 The epenses pertaining
to the vested portion of the SAR's are shown as current liabilitles and the expenses pertaining to the non vested portion are shown as nan-current liahilitles,

The Liabllity is remeasured at each balance sheet date and changes to the carrylng amaunt af the liability is recognised in the Statement of Prafit and Loss.

The fair value of the SAR's was determined using the Black-Scholes model using the followlng inputs at the grant date and as at 31 March 2024:

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars
792 725
001% n.i‘-i!
Figk-freo interest rate {41 5 SOW, 5655
Carrying amount aof llabllity {see note 17 (a) and (b)) {Rs} 484 272

None of the SARs had exercised as at 31 March 2024.

Details of benami property held
There are no proceedings that have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions
Act, 1988 (as amended from time to time) {earlier Benami Transactions {Prohlbition) Act, 1938) and the rules made thereunder
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Rs in lakhs

Willful defaulter
The Company has not been declared willful defauiter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has na transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1356.

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies {Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,

2017, and there are no companies beyond the specified layers

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

{a} The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds {either borrowed funds or share premium ar any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) ol
entity(tes), including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermedlary shall

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the company {*Ultimate Beneficiaries”); or

{ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b} The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entitles {“Funding Party") with the understanding {(whether recorded in

writing or otherwise) that the company shall
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiarles); or

(U)provide any guarantee, security or the like on hehalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries

Undisclosed Income

The Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accaunts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant pravisions of the income-tax Act, 1961). Further, there was no previously
unrecorded income and no additional assets were required to be recarded in the books of account during the year.

Details of Crypta Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has neither traded nar invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current year or previous year. Further, the Company has also not received

any depoasits or advances from any person for the purpose of trading or investing in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency.

Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the current or previous year.

Title deeds of immavable praperty not held in the name of the Company
The title deeds of all the immovable properties are in the name of the Company. The agreements for Immavable properties where the company is the lessee are duly

executed in favour of the lessee.

of charges or sati ion with the Registrar of Companies
During the current year ar previous year, there were no charges or satisfaction of charges which were registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory

period

Borrowing secured against current assets
The Company has borrowings fram banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are in
agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company. The Company does not have barrowings from flnancial institutions on the basls of security of current

assels

Utillsation of Borrowings Availed from Banks and Financial Institutions
The borrowings obtained by the company from banks have been applled far the purposes for which such loans were was taken

C i with scheme of
The Scheme of Arrangement as described in Note 36 was accounted for in the books of account of the Company in the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the
approved Scheme and in d with and there is no deviation in this regard

if o ol countan Bl
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56 Details of Loans given, investmant made and guarantee given covered under Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013
(i) Details of investments made have been given as part of Note 5a Investment in Subsidiaries
{ii] Details of loans and guarantee glven:
Partlculars lationshi pote/ Ut As at 31 March 2024 Asat 31 March 2023
Details of Laans
ASPL Info Services Private Limited Subsidiary Warking Capital Uze .E{ o)
Details of Gusrantess
e . Carporate Guarantee for
Agig iValue Pte. Ltd Subsidiary aa B Rt Frioos Bk 1751 858
57 Financial Ratio Analysis:
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 Change in % Reasan for Change
| Note]
1.5 3
03 -24% MNote 2 [a)
103
21%)
94
{1} Trade Recewabies Tumover Ratia fin Timei] 1.0
] Trande Payables Turnover Ratio (in Tames) 24
n Y
10%) Note 2 (d)
7 26%]
ki Rztutn on Investment (in %) ?}ﬂ m

1) Descriptions of ratios:

a. Current Ratio: Current Assets / Current Liabilities

b, Debt — Equity Ratio: Total Debt / Shareholder’s Equity

¢, Debt Service Coverage Ratio: Earnings avallable for debt service / Debt Service

i) Earnings available for debt service: Net Profit before taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other amartizations + Interest + other adjustmeats like
loss on sale of Fixed assets etc

ii) Debt Service: Interest and Lease Payments + Principal Repayments

d. Return on Equity (ROE): Net Profits after taxes / Average Sharehalder's Equity

e Inventary Turnover Ratio: Cost of Sales / Average Inventory

f. Trade receivables turnover ratio: Gross sales billed to the Customers less returns / Average Accaunts Receivable

g Trade payables turnover ratio: {Gross purchases less returns + Relevant other expenses) / Average Trade Payables

h. Net capital turnover ratio: Gross sales billed to the Customers less returns / Average Working Capital {Working capital is current assets less current liabilities)
i. Net profit ratio: Net Profit / Net Sales

J. Return on capital employed {ROCE): Earning before interest and taxes / Capital Employed where

Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt - Deferred Tax Assets

k. Return on investment: Net profils after taxes / Average Tolal Assets

2) Clarification for Changes (Notes):

a. Debt Equity ratio has decreased due to decrease in the Total debt in proportion iess than increase in shareholder's equity.

b. Debt Service Coverage Ratio has decreased due to increase in the Earnings available for debt service

¢ Inventory Turnover Ratio has decreased due to increase In the average inventory in proportion less than increase in sales.

d. Net Profit Ratio has increased due to increase in gross profit camputed on gross sales and operating leverages given additional benefit

58 lLoan: or advances to tpecified penom
The Company have nat granted any loans ar advances in the nature of loans ta promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013)

either severally or jointly with any other person, that are (a) repayable on demand; or {b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

59 Name Change
Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 12 June 2024 recommended ta convert the company into a
public company. Based on the recommendations of the Board, the members of the Company in its meeting held on dated 12 June 2024 approved the conversion of the
company into a public campany. Pursuant to the said conversion, the Company has received the certificate of incarporation consequent upon conversian to public
company on 8 July 2024 under the name “IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED".

60  Increase in Authorised Share Capital
Subsequent ta the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board of Directors of the Campany vide their resolution dated 12 lune 2024, recommended increase in the autharised

share capital of the Company from Rs. 700 lakhs divided into 50,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each and 20,00,000 preference shares of Rs.10 each to Rs. 1,400 lakhs
divided into 1,20,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each and 20,00,000 preference shares of Rs.10 each.

Based the recommendations of the Board, the members of the Company at it's meeting on 12 June 2024 approved the increase in the authorised share capital

61 Sub-divisian of equity shares
Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company vide their resolution dated 12 June 2024 recommended a sub-division of the
Company's one fully paid equity share of face value of Rs 10 each of the Company into five fully paid equity shares of face value of Rs.2 each. Based on the
recommendations of the Board of Directors of the Company, the members of the Company on 12 June 2024 approved to sub-divide the capital, Pursuant ta the Sub-
Division of the equity shares of the Company, the authorized share capital of the Company has changed to Rs. 1,400 lakhs divided into 6,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs 2
each and 20,00,000 preference shares of Rs.10 each

[-+4 Bonus issue of equity shares
Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company vide their resolution dated 15 July 2024 recommended the Company to utilise the

securities premium account to the extent of Rs. 4,21,07,150 for issuing 2,10,53,575 bonus shares in the ratio of one equity share of Rs 2 each for every one equity share of
Rs.2 each held by holders of the equity shares of the Company, whose names shall appear in the Register of bers or in the o iary account with their
respective Depository Participants as on 19 luly 2024 Based on the recommendations of the Board, the memhers of the Company at it's meeting on 19 July 2024 approved
to utilise the amount and to issue and grant the bonus shares. On 20 July 2024, the Board has allatted the baonus shares to the existing equity shareholders of the

Company.
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63 Shares raserved for issue under aptlons:
iValue Employee Stock Option Plan 2024 ("ESOP 2024" ar “the Scheme"): Subsequent ta the ysar ended 31 March 2024 the Board of Directors of the Company vide their
resolution dated 12 June 2024 recommended and approved the ESOP 2024 for granting Employee Stock Options to the eligible Employees. The eligible employees for the
purpose of ESOP 2024 will be i by the C i as ibed under the Scheme. Pursuant to the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 12 June 2024, the
shareholders approved the Scheme and subsequently the Committee have been authorlzed to intraduce, offer, issue and allot options to ellgible employees of the
Company under the ESOP 2024. The maximum number of shares under this Plan shall not exceed 2,67,000 shares, These Optlons granted under the Scheme shall vest not
earlier than minimum period of 1 {one) year and not later than maximum period of 5 {Five) years from the Grant Date. The vested Optians can be exercised on the events
mentioned under the Scheme

Also the Board of Directors of the Company vide its resolution dated 12 June 2024 have cancelled the existing Employee Share Appreciation Rights Scheme.

In terms of aur report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co, Chartered Accountants LLP For and on brhalf of the Bosrd af Directors
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BOARD’S REPORT
Dear Members,

The Board of Directors are pleased to present their Sixteenth (16™) Board's Report on the business
and operations of your company (“iValue” or “the Company”) for the financial year ended 31 March
2024.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
Rs. In Lakhs *except EPS

Consolidated Standalone

Particulars

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Gross Sales billed to the customers 2,11,048 1,81,068 2,04,223  1,73,743
Revenue from Operations 78,024 79,684 74,641 77,855
Total Expenses 70,062 72,549 66,472 70,639
Profit or Loss before Exceptional and 9,457 8,031 9,534 8,055
Extraordinary items and Tax
Less: Exceptional Items - - -
Profit or Loss before Tax 9,457 8,031 9,534 8,055
Less: Tax Expenses 2,400 2,039 2,328 2,108
Profit or Loss After Tax 7,057 5,992 7,206 5,947
Earnings Per Share (Basic) 13 11 13 11
Earnings Per Share (Diluted) 13 11 13 11

2. STATE OF AFFAIRS/COMPANY’ PERFORMANCE:

Your company is a leader in providing smart, cutting-edge technology solutions which helps
enterprises to manage, optimize and protect their digital assets. As a top Value-Added Distributor,
your company foster innovation through delivering integrated offerings that power data, network &
application (DNA) management for enterprises. And your company is premium technology services
and solutions aggregator, providing offerings across cybersecurity, datacenter infrastructure and
networking.

Your directors wish to inform that during the financial year ended 31 March 2024 the standalone
gross sales billed to the customers of the Company increased to Rs. 2,04,223 Lakhs from Rs. 1,73,743
Lakhs a growth of 17.54%. The Profit before tax for the year under review has increased to Rs. 9,534
Lakhs from Rs. 8,055 Lakhs of last year, which is an increase of 18.36%. The net profit stood at Rs.
7206 Lakhs as against Rs. 5,947 Lakhs of the previous year representing a growth of 21.18%.
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Your directors wish to inform that during the financial year ended 31 March 2024 the consolidated
Gross Sales billed to the customers of the Company increased to Rs.2,11,048 Lakhs from Rs. 1,81,068
Lakhs a growth of 16.56%. The Profit before tax for the year under review has increased to Rs. 9,457
Lakhs from Rs. 8,031 Lakhs of last year, which is an increase of Rs. 17.76%. The net profit stood at
7,057 Lakhs as against 5,992 Lakhs of the previous year representing a growth of 17.77%.

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year 2023-24.

3. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

The basic earning per share (EPS) of your company at standalone stood at Rs. 13 and the diluted
earning per share (EPS) of your company stood at Rs. 13.

The basic earning per share (EPS) of your company at consolidated stood at Rs. 13 and the diluted
earning per share (EPS) of your company stood at Rs. 13.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, considered the entire Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares Series A (Series A CCPS) on a fully convertible basis.

4. DIVIDEND

During the financial year 2023-24 under review, directors does not propose to declare any dividends.

5. RESERVES

During the financial year 2023-24, directors do not propose to transfer any amount to Reserves.

6. DEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the financial year 2023-24.

7. SHARES AND SHARE CAPITAL
The Company's Share Capital position as on March 31, 2024, is as follows: -

Authorized Share Capital Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Share

Capital
Type of shares
No. of Face Value Amount No. of Face Value Amount
Shares (Rs.) (Rs.) Shares (Rs.) (Rs.)

Equity Shares 5,000,000 10 50,000,000 42,10,715 10 42,107,150
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8. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments which affect the financial position of the
Company that have occurred during the year 2023-24 under review.

9. DETAILS OF EMPLOYEE STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS (ESARS)

During the year 2023-24, pursaunt to Employees Stock Appreciation Rights i.e., Employees Stock
Appreciation Rights Plan-I 2021 and Employees Stock Appreciation Rights Plan-1l 2021 (“ESARs
Plans”), below number of ESARs were granted under each ESARs Plan:

Sr.No. Number of ESARs granted Plan

1 117271 Under Employees Stock Appreciation Rights Plan
2021

5 92150 lllJr;c(Jl)zr1 Employees Stock Appreciation Rights Plan

Your Company complying with the accounting policies under applicable laws from time to time

10. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board of Directors of the Company comprised of the following Directors as on March 31, 2024

- Name of the Director z:::;:: I((Ii;:rr\rlt)ification Designation

1. Sunilkumar Pillai 02226978 Managing Director
2. Krishna Raj Sharma 03091392 Director

3. Kabir Kishin Thakur 08422362 Director

None of the Directors of the Company is disqualified under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 as on 31 March 2024.

Key Managerial personnel: During the Financial Year 2023-24, there was no appointment or change
of any Key Managerial Personnel.

11. BOARD MEETINGS AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
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During the year under review 05 (Five) Board Meetings and 2 (two) CSR Committee Meeting were
convened and held;

a) Number of Board Meetings

During the year under review (5) Five Board Meetings were convened and held. Dates of Board
Meeting were: 3" May 2023, 10" Aug 2023, 29" Sep 2023, 20" Dec 2023, 28" Mar 2024.

b) Details of Committee Meetings

During the year under review, two (2) committee meeting (Corporate Social Responsibility) was held.
Date of the CSR Committee was 5" Jan 2024 and 29" Mar 2024.

12. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company has constituted the CSR Committee in compliance with the Companies Act 2013.
During the year under review, the Board of Directors have accepted all the recommendations of the
above Committee.

13. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy which identifies major risks
which may threaten the existence of the Company. The same has also been adopted by your Board
and is also subject to its review from time to time. Risk mitigation process and measures have been
also formulated and clearly spelled out in the said policy.

14. COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are not applicable to the Company.

15. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

In accordance with Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 a statement containing sailent features
of the financial statements of the subsidairy companies in Form AOC-1 is provided in Annexure -I.
The statement of also provides details of performance and financial position of each subsisdiries.
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As on 31-Mar-2024, your company having below subsidiaries. iValue S L (Private) Limited and iValue
Infosolutions SEA Co. Ltd., are yet to start business operations:

Sr. No. Name of Company Type of Company Date of Incorporation
1. Asia iValue Pte Ltd Wholly owned subsidiary 10" Feb 2021

2. iValue S L (Private) Limited Wholly owned subsidiary 6" July 2021

3. iValue Infosolutions SEA Co. Ltd,  Wholly owned subsidiary 24" Mar 2022

4 ASPL Info Service Private Limited  Subsidiary 16™ Feb 2023

5. ASPL Info Service (FZE) Step Subsidiary 17" Dec 2007

Your Company does not have any associate or joint venture company within the meaning of Section
2(6) of the Act, during the year under review.

16. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS
IN FUTURE

No significant and material order passed by any regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and company’s operations in future. The company is doing reasonable growth and
development.

17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Conservation of Energy: The operations of the Company are not energy intensive. However, adequate
measures for conservation have been taken to reduce energy consumption.

The Company has not absorbed any technology and invested in research and development.

During the year, Company’s Earnings and Expenditure in Foreign Currency: Details of Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo are as follows:
Amount in Rs.

Particulars Year ended March 31 2024 Year ended March 31 2023

Foreign Exchange Inflow 1,82,80,23,212 1,60,67,03,156
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Foreign Exchange Outflow 9,99,75,77,259 7,94,70,56,678

18. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) containing composition of CSR Committee,
CSR sepnt amount and terms of policy is provided in Annexure-II.

The Company’s CSR Policy is available on our website, at www.ivaluegroup.com.

19. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company has provided loan, made investment and gurantees

as follows:.
Sr. Name of Company Particulars Amount in
No. Rupees
1. AsiaiValue Pte. Ltd Corporate Guanratee 8,75,70,000
2. ASPL Info Services Private Limited Loan 2,25,00,000

20. OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment in accordance with the
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)
Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding
sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under
this policy. The Company did not receive any complaints during the year 2023-24.

21. PARTICULAR OF EMPLOYEES

The provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act 2013, read along with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 are not applicable to Private
Companies.

22. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The provisions of Section 149(6) for appointment of Independent Directors is not applicable to the
company.
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23. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is uploaded on the company’s website at
www.ivaluegroup.com.

24. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length
basis, in the ordinary course of business and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Act.

There were no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict
with the interest of the Company at large.

All Related Party Transactions in Form AOC-2 enclosed as Annexure-lIl.

25. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby
submits its responsibility Statement:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the company for that period;

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) the Company being unlisted, sub clause (e) of section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
pertaining to laying down internal financial controls is not applicable to the Company; and
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f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

26. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company has an adequate internal control system commensurate with its size and nature of its
business. Management has overall responsibility for the Company's internal control system to
safeguard the assets and to ensure reliability of financial records. The Company has a detailed
budgetary control system and the actual performance is reviewed periodically and decisions taken
accordingly.

The adequacy and effectiveness of these systems is continuously examined by Internal Auditor.
Internal audit program covers all areas of activities and periodical reports are submitted to the
Management. Board reviews all financial statements and ensures adequacy of internal control
systems. The Company has a well-defined organization structure, authority matrix and internal rules
and guidelines for conducting business transactions.

27. STATUTORY AUDITORS

Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No:
304026E/E-300009), have been appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company on 30" September
2022 for the term of five (5) years, to hold office from the conclusion of 14" Annual General Meeting
till the conclusion of the 19" AGM to be held in the year 2027.

28. AUDITORS’ REPORT

The statutory auditors’ report do not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks.
Notes to Accounts and Auditors remarks in their report are self-explanatory and do not call for any
further comments.

During the year, the Statutory auditors have not reported any instances of frauds commited in the
company by Board of Directors and officers or employees. Details in Respect of Frauds Reported by
the Auditors under Section 143(12) the Companies Act:

29. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

Maintenance of Cost Records under Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to
our Company.
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30. DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND VIGIL MECHANISM

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

31. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS [SECTION 134(3)(q) READ WITH RULE 8 (5)(ii) OF THE
COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014:

There is no change in the nature of business during the year 2022-23.

32. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED AFTER THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE
AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There have been material changes which affect the financial position of the Company that have
occurred during the year 2023-24 under review.

a. Name Change:

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting
held on 12 June 2024 recommended to convert the company into a public company. Based on the
recommendations of the Board, the members of the Company in its meeting held on dated 12 June
2024 approved the conversion of the company into a public company. Pursuant to the said
conversion, the Company has received the certificate of incorporation consequent upon conversion
to public company on 8 July 2024 under the name "IVALUE INFOSOLUTIONS LIMITED".

b. Increase in Authorised Share Capital

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company vide their
resolution dated 12 June 2024, recommended increase in the authorised share capital of the
Company from Rs. 700 lakhs divided into 50,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each and 20,00,000
preference shares of Rs.10 each to Rs. 1,400 lakhs divided into 1,20,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10
each and 20,00,000 preference shares of Rs.10 each.

Based the recommendations of the Board, the members of the Company at it's meeting on 12 June
2024 approved the increase in the authorised share capital.

c. Sub-division of equity shares
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Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company vide their
resolution dated 12 June 2024 recommended a sub-division of the Company's one fully paid equity
share of face value of Rs.10 each of the Company into five fully paid equity shares of face value of
Rs.2 each. Based on the recommendations of the Board of Directors of the Company, the members
of the Company on 12 June 2024 approved to sub-divide the capital. Pursuant to the Sub-Division of
the equity shares of the Company, the authorized share capital of the Company has changed to Rs.
1,400 lakhs divided into 6,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.2 each and 20,00,000 preference shares of
Rs.10 each.

d. Bonus issue of equity shares

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company vide their
resolution dated 15 July 2024 recommended the Company to utilise the securities premium account
to the extent of Rs. 4,21,07,150 for issuing 2,10,53,575 bonus shares in the ratio of one equity share
of Rs.2 each for every one equity share of Rs.2 each held by holders of the equity shares of the
Company, whose names shall appear in the Register of members or in the respective beneficiary
account with their respective Depository Participants as on 19 July 2024. Based on the
recommendations of the Board, the members of the Company at it's meeting on 19 July 2024
approved to utilise the amount and to issue and grant the bonus shares. On 20 July 2024, the Board
has allotted the bonus shares to the existing equity shareholders of the Company.

e. Shares reserved for issue under options:

iValue Employee Stock Option Plan 2024 ("ESOP 2024" or "the Scheme"): Subsequent to the year
ended 31 March 2024 the Board of Directors of the Company vide their resolution dated 12 June
2024 recommended and approved the ESOP 2024 for granting Employee Stock Options to the
eligible Employees. The eligible employees for the purpose of ESOP 2024 will be determined by the
Committee as prescribed under the Scheme. Pursuant to the Extraordinary General Meeting held on
12 June 2024, the shareholders approved the Scheme and subsequently the Committee have been
authorized to introduce, offer, issue and allot options to eligible employees of the Company under
the ESOP 2024. The maximum number of shares under this Plan shall not exceed 2,67,000 shares.
These Options granted under the Scheme shall vest not earlier than minimum period of 1 (one) year
and not later than maximum period of 5 (Five) years from the Grant Date. The vested Options can be
exercised on the events mentioned under the Scheme.

Also the Board of Directors of the Company vide its resolution dated 12 June 2024 have cancelled
the existing Employee Share Appreciation Rights Scheme.

33. STATEMENT OF INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:
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